Environmental Resources Group

28003 Center Oaks Court ® Suite 106 * Wixom, M| ¢ 48393
Phone: 248-773-7986 ¢ Fax: 248-924-3108

November 14, 2022

Brittney Beavers

Water Resources Division

Michigan Department of Environment, Great Lakes and Energy
PO Box 30242, 525 W. Allegan

Lansing, Michigan 48909

RE: Precision Vehicle Holding
Wetland Concern - City of Burton DPW
Vacant Parcel, Davison and Donegal Roads, Burton, Michigan — SPID #59-10-100-031

Dear Ms. Beavers,

Environmental Resources Group, LLC (ERG) is reaching out on behalf of our client, Precision Vehicle
Holding (PVH), and the property owner, RACER Properties (RACER), regarding a potential wetland
concern at the RACER Davison Road Landfill site, located at the intersection of Davison and Donegal
Roads, Burton, Michigan. This concern was brought to our attention by the City of Burton DPW following
the conversion of a portion of the site to a gravel-paved parking lot. There is an approximately 1.48-acre
National Wetland Inventory (NWI) designated wetland located in the southern portion of the site.
During construction of the gravel parking lot, approximately 0.7 acres of the NWI polygon were
disturbed. This disturbance consisted of removal of vegetation, placement of a geotextile fabric and
gravel, and general grading. PVH has chosen to not pursue the continued use of the site as a parking lot
and will remove all gravel/fabric and reseed, including that placed within the NWI area. The City's
concern is that, as a portion of the gravel to be removed is within the NWI boundary, they do not have
the authority to approve our restoration plan in that area.

However, it is ERG's understanding that the Part 303 Wetland Inventory Maps, which include the NWI
areas, are to be used as general guidance for where wetlands have the potential to exist and not as
actual delineated boundaries. Based on ERG's knowledge of the property and extensive review of
historical records, including soil boring data and historical aerial photographs, ERG believes that the
portion of the NWI wetland area polygon that was covered with gravel is not part of an actual wetland
area. We would like your guidance and feedback on how to proceed at the site, based on the
background information provided below and as attachments. Several figures are included that provide
details of the area of concern. Figure 1 shows a general overview of the site with both the gravel area
(surveyed by ERG on October 12, 2022) and NWI wetland area.

SITE HISTORY

ERG reviewed historical aerial photographs (circa 1937, 1941, 1950, 1957, 1964, 1972, 1982, 1992, 2000,
2005, 2006, 2009, 2010, and 2012) and various reports to produce the following general history of the
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site, especially as it relates to the NWI identified wetland area. A summary of the findings is listed

below.
Year
Pre-1950’s
1950’s
1960’s

1969

1970’s

1975

1978

1981

2005

2011

Site History
The site consisted of cultivated farmland, with a wooded area along Gilkey Creek.
Residential development began at the site.
GMC Buick Motor Division purchased the property.
The United States Geological Survey (USGS) prepared a topographic map using aerial
imagery with some field verification and identified an area of intermittent standing water
in the southern portion near Gilkey Creek.
GMC placed fill at the property, primarily in the central and southeast portions. Fill was
placed in the area where intermittent standing water shown in the 1969 topographic map.
USGS updated infrastructure on topographic map using aerial imagery; no additional
survey information was collected.
Michigan Department of Natural Resources (MDNR) performed an assessment of land
cover at the property using aerial photographs as part of the Michigan Resource Inventory
System (MIRIS 1978). A lowland hardwood wetland area was identified surrounding Gilkey
Creek in the central portion of the property.
Note: This area is completely separate from the NWI wetland and has not been covered
with gravel.
US Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) completed original NWI survey of the area, utilizing
aerial photography and topographic maps.
USFWS designated a 1.48-acre area of the southern portion of the property as a
Freshwater Emergent Wetland as part of the National Wetland Inventory. According to the
USFWS, the wetlands and deep-water habitats in this area were photo interpreted using 1
meter (or less) digital, true color imagery from 2005. In areas of heavy canopy cover, like
the site, the USFWS also used topographic maps to supplement the areas.
Note: It appears that this may have been the case at the Site, as the NWI wetland coincides
with the intermittent standing water shown in the topographic maps.
RACER Trust was created in March 2011 to oversee the cleanup and position for
redevelopment certain real properties formerly owned by GMC at the time of GMC's
bankruptcy in 2009. RACER began managing the site at this time.

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION

Line of Evidence No. 1 — GMC Filling Operations

As described in the site history above, ERG believes that the second main data source for the placement
of the NWI wetland area on the site by the USFWS was the USGS topographic map produced in 1969/75.
Figure 2 shows aerial imagery of the site from 1964, showing the site as it existed during the USGS survey.
Although a water body or wetland cannot be seen in the 1964 aerial imagery, even if a wetland area
existed at the time of the USGS survey, fill was placed over that area by GMC during their landfilling
operations in the early 1970s. This activity was shown in the 1972 aerial map, overlain on the site map in
Figure 3. In the aerial imagery, a large amount of fill material was observed being placed in the
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southeastern portion of the property, particularly in the NWI wetland area. Fill and general land
disturbance was visible within the entire area of the NWI boundary where PVH has placed gravel. This
indicates that the gravel placed by PVH was in an area already disturbed by GMC, where wetlands no
longer could have existed.

Line of Evidence No. 2 — USFWS Data Sources

Aerial imagery from 2005 was listed by the USFWS as their primary data source for determining wetland
areas for the NWI. This imagery is shown overlain with the site diagram in Figure 4. A grass-covered area
is shown in this imagery over most of the NWI boundary. Therefore, it is unclear what the reasoning was
for the placement of the NWI wetland in that area. However, based on previously described filling
operations and the knowledge of the site, if there ever was an area of intermittent standing water, it no
longer existed and the grass-covered area is at a higher elevation (approximately 760’ above mean sea
level, AMSL) than the riparian area along Gilkey Creek to the south and west (approximately 752" AMSL).
The elevation difference indicates that the conditions do not exist for a wetland to form in that area.
Finally, the area of potential wetlands identified by the MDNR in 1978, shown in all figures as an orange
polygon, does not overlap with the NWI area. If this wetland area existed, it likely would have been
identified at least partially by both parties. Therefore, it appears that the USFWS made an error in its
survey for the NWI and misattributed a portion of the NWI area (especially where gravel was placed by
PVH) as a wetland.

Line of Evidence No. 3 — Soil Boring Data

During the course of environmental investigation activities at the site, ERG and other consulting firms
have advanced several borings along the eastern and western edges of the NWI wetland area. The
locations of borings, along with general lithology data, are provided in Figure 5. Boring logs from these
soil borings are provided in Attachment 2. As shown in the boring logs and figure, fill is present along the
eastern boundary of the NWI wetland to a maximum depth of 11.5’ below ground surface (bgs) at SBMW-
2 and along the western boundary of the NWI wetland to a maximum depth of 2’ bgs at SB/MW-11-12.
The depth of fill in the borings, along with the current elevation contours shown in the figure, demonstrate
the significant quantity of fill that was placed in this area and further prove that the NWI wetland had
been misidentified.

SUMMARY

It is ERG’s opinion that the portion of the NWI identified wetland covered with gravel by PVH was not in
fact an actual wetland area and if it was ever present, hasn’t been since at least the 1970’s, prior to when
wetland regulations went into effect in Michigan. This is based on the following lines of evidence:

e Aerial images since 1937 do not show standing water or an apparent wetland.

e Aerial imagery from 1972 shows fill being placed in the NWI wetland area by GMC.

e The data sources used by the USFWS (2005 aerial imagery and the 1969/75 USGS topographic
map) show areas, such as standing water and grass-covered areas, that could be easily mistaken
for wetland areas.

e Soil borings advanced along both the east and west sides of the NWI boundary show fill with a
maximum depth of 11.5’ bgs on the east side.
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e The NWI wetland was not identified as a wetland by the MDNR in their MIRIS land cover
database.

e The area within the NWI boundary where gravel was placed by PVH is a significantly higher
elevation than the surrounding riparian area, indicating that the conditions required for wetland
formation do not exist in that area.

Please let us know your thoughts on the above. While it is ERG's belief that all evidence, besides the
existence of a potentially misattributed NWI polygon, points to the conclusion that the area covered by
PVH was not a wetland and restoration of the surface to its previous status (grass-covered) should be
sufficient to address the City’s concerns, we would appreciate your feedback on this matter.

Thank you for your attention on this matter and please feel free to reach out with any questions. If it
would be helpful to set up a meeting with all parties to discuss, please let us know.

ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCES GROUP

e 7
Taylor N. Vergin Mala C. Hettiarachchi, PhD, PE
Project Engineer Senior Engineer/Senior Project Manager

Encl.

Attachment 1 — Figures
Attachment 2 — Soil Boring Logs

Cc: Dean Anos, PVH
Dave Favero, RACER Trust
Steve Black, RACER Trust





















ATTACHMENT 2
SOIL BORING LOGS


















